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March 15, 2021 

Via Electronic Filing 

Honorable Lisa R. Barton 
Secretary 
U.S. International Trade Commission 
500 E Street SW, Room 112 
Washington, DC 20436 

Re: Certain Skin Rejuvenation Devices, Components Thereof, and Products 
Containing the Same, Inv. No. 337-TA- 

Dear Secretary Barton: 

In accordance with the Commission’s Temporary Change to the Filing Procedure, dated March 
16, 2020, enclosed for filing on behalf of InMode Ltd. and Invasix Inc. d/b/a InMode (collectively, 
“Complainants”), please find the following documents in support of Complainants’ request that 
the U.S. International Trade Commission commence an investigation pursuant to Section 337 of 
the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended.  This submission includes: 

1. One (1) electronic copy of the verified Non-Confidential Complaint and the Public Interest 
Statement, pursuant to 19 C.F.R. §§ 210.8(a)(1)(i) and 201.8(b); 

2. One (1) electronic copy of Complainants’ letter and certification requesting confidential 
treatment of the information contained in Confidential Exhibit No. 8 (19 C.F.R. §§ 210.5(d) 
and 201.6(b)); 

3. One (1) electronic copy of the accompanying Non-Confidential Exhibits (19 C.F.R. § 
210.8(a)(1)(ii)); 

4. One (1) electronic copy of the Confidential Exhibit No. 8 (19 C.F.R. §§ 201.6(c) and 
210.8(a)(1)(ii)): 

5. One (1) electronic copy of United States Patent No. 10,799,285 (“the ’285 patent”), cited 
in the Complaint as Exhibit 1 (19 C.F.R. 210.12(a)(9)(i)); 

6. One (1) electronic copy of each of the assignments for the ’285 patent, cited in the 
Complaint as Exhibit 2 (19 C.R.F. § 210.12(a)(9)(ii)); 
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7. One (1) electronic copy of the prosecution history for the ’285 patent, included as Appendix 
A to the Complaint (19 C.F.R. § 210.12(c)(1)); and 

8. One (1) electronic copy of the patents and technical reference documents identified in the 
prosecution history of the ’285 patent, included as Appendix B to the Complaint (19 C.F.R. 
§ 210.12(c)(2)). 

Thank you for your attention to this matter.  Please do not hesitate to contact me with any 
questions regarding this submission. 

 
Yours sincerely 

/s/ Benjamin E. Weed 

Benjamin E. Weed 
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March 15, 2021 

Via Electronic Filing 

Honorable Lisa R. Barton 
Secretary 
U.S. International Trade Commission 
500 E Street SW, Room 112 
Washington, DC 20436 

Re: Certain Skin Rejuvenation Devices, Components Thereof, and Products 
Containing the Same, Inv. No. 337-TA- 

Dear Secretary Barton: 

Pursuant to Commission Rules 210.5(d) and 201.6(b)(1), Complainants InMode Ltd. and Invasix 
Inc. d/b/a InMode (collectively, “InMode” or “Complainants”) respectfully request confidential 
treatment of the information contained in Exhibit No. 8.  The information contained in Exhibit 8 
qualifies as confidential business information pursuant to Commission Rule 201.6(a) because: 

1. It is not available to the general public; 

2. The disclosure of such information would cause substantial harm to InMode and to the 
competitive position of InMode.  Specifically, the confidential exhibit contains confidential 
proprietary information relating to InMode’s significant domestic investments in labor and 
capital relating to InMode’s domestic industry products and the exploitation of the asserted 
patent; and 

3. Unauthorized disclosure of the information could impair the Commission’s ability to obtain 
information necessary to perform its statutory function. 

Thank you for your attention to this matter.  Please do not hesitate to contact me with any 
questions regarding this submission. 
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Yours sincerely 

/s/ Benjamin E. Weed 

Benjamin E. Weed 
 

 

     



UNITED STATES INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION 
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20436 

 

In the Matter of 

CERTAIN SKIN REJUVENATION 
RESURFACING DEVICES, 
COMPONENTS THEREOF, AND 
PRODUCTS CONTAINING THE SAME 

Inv. No. 337-TA-____ 

 

STATEMENT OF PUBLIC INTEREST BY INMODE LTD.  
PURSUANT TO 19 C.F.R. § 210.8(b) 

Pursuant to Commission Rule 210.8(b), Complainants, InMode Ltd. and Invasix Inc. d/b/a 

InMode (collectively “InMode”), respectfully submit this Statement Regarding the Public Interest.  

InMode seeks a limited exclusion order excluding from entry into the United States certain skin 

rejuvenation resurfacing devices, components thereof, and products containing the same 

(“Accused Products”) that infringe certain claims of United States Patent No. 10,799,285 (“the 

’285 patent”).  Inmode also seeks permanent cease and desist orders prohibiting the Proposed 

Respondents and their related entities, subsidiaries, parents, related companies, and agents from 

engaging in the marketing and/or advertising, distribution, offering for sale, sale, use after 

importation, sale after importation, or other transfer within the United States of the Accused 

Products.  Exclusion of such products from the United States will not have an adverse effect on 

the public health and welfare in the United States, competitive conditions in the United States 

economy, the production of like or directly competitive articles in the United States, or United 

States consumers. 

Exclusion of the Accused Products would not “deprive the public of products necessary 

for some important health or welfare need.” Spansion, Inc. v. US. Intl Trade Comm ‘n, 629 F.3d 
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1331, 1360 (Fed. Cir. 2010).  Further, because InMode and other third parties supply products to 

the same market as the Accused Products, the relevant consumers would not face any shortage of 

like or competitive products in the United States. Thus, this Investigation does not present an 

instance where a compelling public interest would supersede entry of the requested remedial 

orders. 

I. Explanation of How the Articles Potentially Subject to the Remedial Orders are Used 
in the United States 

 
The products at issue in this Investigation include certain skin rejuvenation resurfacing 

devices, components thereof, and products containing the same. These products are used in 

various, typically elective, dermatological and/or cosmetic procedures.   

II. Identification of Any Public Health, Safety, or Welfare Concerns Relating to the 
Requested Remedial Orders 

 
Issuance of the requested remedial orders would have no adverse effect on the public 

health, safety, or welfare in the United States.  In general, concerns about a negative impact on 

public health, safety, or welfare have arisen in cases involving pharmaceuticals or essential 

equipment for medical treatment or implicating key national interests.  See Spansion, 629 F.3d at 

1360.  For example, the Commission has previously concluded that access to essential medical 

equipment used to treat burn victims is a significant public interest consideration because the 

equipment “provide[s] benefits unavailable from any other device or method of treatment.” 

Certain Fluidized Supporting Apparatus & Components Thereof, Inv. No. 337-TA-182/ 188, 

US1TC Pub. 1667, Comm’n Op. at 23-25 (Oct. 1984).  This is not a concern here given the nature 

of the Accused Products and their typical use in elective procedures.  And, as discussed further 

below, the requested remedial orders will not significantly impact the overall market for skin 

rejuvenation resurfacing devices in the United States. 
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Accordingly, access to the Accused Products does not unduly implicate any meaningful 

public health, safety, or welfare concern.  Indeed, the requested relief serves the public interest 

because, as previously recognized by the Commission, there is a strong public interest in protecting 

intellectual property rights.  See, e.g., Certain Baseband Processor Chips and Chipsets, 

Transmitter and Receiver (Radio) Chips, Power Control Chips, and Products Containing Same, 

Including Cellular Telephone Handsets, Inv. No. 337-TA-543, Comm’n Op. at 136-37 (June 19, 

2007).  This strong interest in protecting InMode’s intellectual property rights and the domestic 

industry set forth in the Complaint far outweighs any hypothetical adverse effect on the public. 

III. Identification of Like or Directly Competitive Articles that Complainant or Third 
Parties Make Which Could Replace the Subject Article if They were to be Excluded 

 
Skin rejuvenation resurfacing devices are already available from multiple sources with 

which Proposed Respondents compete.  InMode and other third parties adequately supply the 

market for such products and will continue to do so irrespective of whether the requested remedial 

orders issue.  Proposed Respondents are a subset of the existing suppliers of such products.  

Further, because of the typically elective nature of the procedures in which such products are used, 

they do not contain any unique health or safety-related features.  No public interest concerns exist 

where the market contains an adequate supply of competitive or substitute products for those 

products subject to a remedial order.  See, e.g., Certain Lens Fitted Film Packages, Inv. No. 337-

TA-406, Comm'n Op. at 18 (June 28, 1999).   

IV. Indication of Whether Complainant and/or Third Party Suppliers Have the Capacity 
to Replace the Volume of Articles Subject to the Requested Remedial Orders in a 
Commercially Reasonable Time 

 
Skin rejuvenation resurfacing devices are currently available in the United States, including 

products from InMode and non-respondent third parties.  These entities have the capacity to 

increase domestic production of skin rejuvenation resurfacing devices should demand require.  
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Consequently, consumers would have access to alternatives in amounts sufficient to meet the 

demand should the Accused Products be excluded from the United States. 

V. Statement of How the Requested Remedial Order Would Impact Consumers  

Consumers will have available to them in the United States marketplace a variety of skin 

rejuvenation resurfacing devices, including those supplied by InMode, as well as other competitive 

products if the Accused Products are excluded from the United States.  In view of the availability 

such alternatives, the exclusion of the Accused Products will not negatively impact consumers in 

the United States.  Rather, the requested relief will serve the public interest by enforcing United 

States intellectual-property rights.  Precluding the Proposed Respondents from importing and 

selling the Accused Products will benefit the public interest by protecting innovators, such as 

InMode, who invest domestically to research and develop new technologies.  Permitting 

unlicensed entities like the Proposed Respondents to import and sell infringing products would not 

only devalue the existing intellectual property generated by InMode, but would also undermine 

future investment in similar technology.  See Certain Display Controllers and Products 

Containing Same, Inv. No. 337-TA-491/481, Comm’n Op. at 66 (Feb. 2005). 

 

Date:  March 15, 2021                                         Respectfully submitted, 
 
 

/s/ Benjamin E. Weed 
Benjamin E. Weed 
George C. Summerfield 
Gina A. Johnson 
70 W. Madison St. 
Suite 3300 
Chicago, IL 60602 
Tel: (312) 372.1121 
Fax: (312) 827.8000 
 
Jacob C. Vannette 
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1600 K St. N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20006 
Tel: (202) 628-1700 
 
Counsel for Complainants InMode Ltd. and 
Invasix Inc. 
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I. INTRODUCTION 

1.1. Complainants InMode Ltd. (“InMode”) and Invasix Inc. (“Invasix”) (collectively, 

“Complainants”) request that the United States International Trade Commission commence an 

investigation pursuant to Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. § 1337 

(“Section 337”), to remedy the unlawful importation into the United States, sale for importation 

into the United States, and/or sale within the United States after importation by the owner, 

importer, or consignee (or agents thereof) of certain skin rejuvenation resurfacing devices, 

components thereof, and products containing the same that infringe InMode’s United States Patent 

No. 10,799,285 (“the ’285 patent” or “the Asserted Patent”). 

1.2. The Proposed Respondents are ILOODA Co., Ltd., and Cutera, Inc. (collectively, 

“Proposed Respondents”).  Proposed Respondents have engaged in unfair acts in violation of 

Section 337 through the unlicensed importation into the United States, sale for importation into 

the United States, and/or sale within the United States after importation of products that infringe 

one or more claims of the ’285 patent. 

1.3. Proposed Respondents directly infringe at least the following claims (independent 

claims in bold; collectively, “the Asserted Claims”): 

Asserted Patent Asserted Claim 

10,799,285 1 

 
1.4. A copy of the ’285 patent accompanies this Complaint as Exhibit 1.  InMode owns 

by assignment the entire right, title, and interest in and to the ’285 patent.  Copies of the recorded 

assignments accompany this Complaint as Exhibit 2. 

1.5. As required by Sections 1337(a)(2) & (3), a domestic industry in the United States 

exists relating to articles covered by the ’285 patent. 
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1.6. Complainants seek a permanent limited exclusion order pursuant to Section 337(d), 

excluding from entry into the United States all of the Proposed Respondents’ Accused Products 

(examples of which are described infra in Section IV) that infringe one or more claims of the ’285 

patent.  Complainants also seek permanent cease and desist orders, pursuant to Section 337(f), 

directing each Proposed Respondent to cease and desist from activities including marketing, 

advertising, demonstrating, warehousing inventory for distribution, offering for sale, selling, 

distributing, servicing, repairing, maintaining, programming, updating, or using such Accused 

Products in the United States.  Complainants further seek the imposition of a bond of 100% of the 

sales value as a prerequisite to the importation of the Accused Products during the Presidential 

review period. 

II. COMPLAINANTS 

2.1. InMode is a corporation organized under the laws of Israel, with its principal place 

of business at Tavor Building Shaar Yokneam, P.O. Box 533, Yokneam 2069206, Israel. 

2.2. InMode was established in 2008 and has been providing innovative, minimally 

invasive wellness and aesthetic solutions for over a decade.  InMode develops, manufactures, and 

markets devices harnessing novel radio-frequency (“RF”) technology and strives to enable new 

emerging surgical procedures as well as improve upon existing treatments.  InMode has 

incorporated its medically accepted, minimally invasive RF technologies into a comprehensive 

line of Morpheus8 products for plastic surgery, gynaecology, dermatology, otolaryngology, and 

ophthalmology (“Domestic Industry Products”). 

2.3. Invasix is a corporation organized under the laws of the state of Delaware, with a 

principal place of business at 20996 Bake Parkway, Suite 106, Lake Forest, California 92630. 
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2.4. Invasix is a wholly owned subsidiary of InMode.  InMode engages in a variety of 

activities in the United States as described herein and in the documents accompanying this 

Complaint regarding the Domestic Industry Products. 

III. PROPOSED RESPONDENTS 

3.1. ILOODA Co., Ltd. (“ILOODA”) is a corporation organized under the laws of the 

Republic of Korea, with its principal place of business at 120 Jangan-ro 458beon-gil, Jangan-gu 

Suwon, 16200 Republic of Korea. 

3.2. ILOODA manufactures infringing skin rejuvenation resurfacing devices and 

imports and/or sells for importation into the United States infringing skin rejuvenation resurfacing 

devices, such as SecretRF (“the Accused Products”). 

3.3. Cutera, Inc. (“Cutera”) is a corporation organized under the laws of the State of 

Delaware, with its principal place of business in Brisbane, California. 

3.4. Cutera offers for sale, sells, and/or imports the Accused Products.  See 

https://cutera.com/secretRF [Exhibit 3]. 

IV. THE TECHNOLOGY AND THE ACCUSED PRODUCTS 

4.1. The technology at issue relates to skin rejuvenation resurfacing devices, such as 

punctile resurfacing systems, and ways to improve moderate skin wrinkles, scars, pores, 

pigmentation, and skin texture.  Skin resurfacing devices comprise a needle array and a 

reciprocating mechanism that provides cyclic in and out movement of the needle array.  Skin 

resurfacing devices create tissue and blood coagulation in the areas where the needles penetrate 

the skin to stimulate collagen remodelling. 

4.2. The aesthetic industry employs several different procedures to improve the skin’s 

appearance.  Devices used in these procedures can be laser, broad band light, mechanical, and 

radiofrequency systems.  Lasers use specific wavelengths of light to penetrate the skin, bind to 
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chromophores and, through photothermolysis, remove various colors and pigments from the skin.  

Lasers with longer wavelengths cause nonspecific heating and improve skin texture and fine 

wrinkling.  Radiofrequency technologies, on the other hand, use electrical current to heat the 

under-carpet of the skin, called the dermis, and stimulate production of collagen and elastin, fibers 

that firm and tighten the skin.  Some systems deliver pinpoint, segmental, or fractional injuries to 

the skin in conjunction with laser or RF stimulation to stimulate dermal remodelling and tissue 

healing through the more rapid production of new collagen, elastin, and ground substance with 

faster recovery and less pain. 

4.3. The ’285 patent discloses a novel precision, high-speed, mechanical needle 

puncture system and procedure that safely and effectively improves the texture and appearance of 

skin with little risk of hypo-pigmentation or scarring.  To accomplish these objectives, the device 

of the ’285 patent employs a reciprocating hand piece that provides for rapid, in-and-out oscillation 

of a needle array.  A needle tip protects the needle array and permits depth guidance, while an RF 

source allows for application of RF energy to the needles to cause blood coagulation. 

4.4. Other skin resurfacing techniques used in the industry are either imprecise, 

ineffective, or expensive and require up to two weeks of recovery before a patient can apply make-

up.  The invention of the ’285 patent allow for a minimally invasive procedure with minimal pain 

and almost no recovery period.  Such invention provides for a better skin resurfacing experience 

in the Accused Products and the Domestic Industry Products. 

4.5. The Accused Products are skin resurfacing devices, punctile resurfacing systems, 

radio-frequency microneedling systems, and components of each that, without permission, 

implement InMode’s patented technology involving skin resurfacing devices as described and 

claimed in the ’285 patent. 
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4.6. ILOODA’s SecretRF device is representative of the Accused Products.  ILOODA 

touts to its customers that the SecretRF device provides an effective de-aging process with little 

pain or down time using microneedling and application of RF energy through the needle array.  

See, e.g., http://www.ilooda.com/bbs/board.php?bo_table=s2_1_eng&wr_id=22. [Exhibit 9]. 

V. THE ASSERTED PATENT 

A. Identification of the Patent and Ownership by InMode 

5.1. The ’285 patent is entitled “Skin rejuvenation resurfacing device and method of 

use” and was duly and legally issued on October 13, 2020.  Exhibit 1 at Cover.  The ’285 patent 

issued from U.S. Patent Application Serial No. 12/573,923, filed October 6, 2009.  Id.  The 

inventor is R. Stephen Mulholland.  Id. 

5.2. The ’285 patent has two independent claims and ten dependent claims.  Id. at 8:24-

10:23.  The ’285 patent expires on October 8, 2030.  Id. at Cover. 

5.3. InMode is the owner, by valid assignment, of the entire right, title, and interest in 

and to the ’285 patent.  Exhibit 2.  The assignment from SpaMedica International SRL is to 

Invasix, Ltd., the predecessor in interest to InMode.  Id. 

5.4. This Complaint is accompanied by Appendices A and B containing: A) a copy and 

three additional copies of the prosecution history of the ’295 patent; and B) four copies of cited 

references from that prosecution history. 

B. Non-Technical Description of the Patented Invention4 

5.5. The ’285 patent relates to a skin rejuvenation resurfacing device.  Punctile 

resurfacing, i.e., penetrating the surface of the skin with several needles, provides safe and 

                                                 
4  The non-technical description of the ’285 patent herein is presented to give a general background 

of the invention.  Such statements are not intended to be used, nor should be used, for purposes 
of patent claim interpretation.  Complainants present these statements subject to, and without 
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effective skin rejuvenation for improvement of moderate wrinkles, scars, pores, pigmentation, and 

skin texture.  When combining thermal application in the form of RF energy with repetitive needle 

penetration of the skin, blood coagulation is stimulated under the surface of the skin and enables 

the more rapid production of new collagen, elastin, and ground substance. 

5.6. A hand piece with a need array and a tip covering the needle array is placed over 

the skin in the area to be treated.  The device provides reciprocating, in-and-out oscillations for the 

duration of treatment, during which the needles penetrate the skin according to a pre-set depth.  

The tip covering the needle array controls penetration depth.  The device is passed over the surface 

of the skin and RF energy is supplied through the needles on each penetration.  One treatment can 

involve multiple passes over the treatment area, causing deep bruised discoloration to the skin and 

edema. 

5.7. Because the needles cause small fractional thermal injuries inside the tissue, the 

epidermis and a significant part of the dermis and subdermal tissue around the small injury zones 

remains intact after treatment.  This intact tissue allows for rapid healing of the small coagulated 

zones, minimizing discomfort in the treatment and resulting in fast recovery in as little as 24 to 48 

hours.  Unlike prior skin resurfacing systems, this process is inexpensive and relatively painless, 

allowing for a simpler and more cost-effective treatment. 

C. Foreign Counterparts 

5.8. The ’285 patent does not have any foreign counterparts. 

5.9. No foreign patent applications corresponding to the ’285 patent have been filed, 

abandoned, withdrawn, or rejected. 

                                                 
waiver of, their right to argue that claim terms should be construed in a particular way, as 
contemplated by claim interpretation jurisprudence and the relevant evidence. 
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D. Licenses 

5.10. Invasix has an exclusive implied license under the ’285 patent, as evident from the 

Distribution Agreement concluded between the parties on October 1, 2008, wherein Invasix Inc. 

is appointed as a distributor in the United States for products sold by InMode Ltd.  Distribution 

Agreement [Exhibit 4] at 1.  The Distribution Agreement governs “[t]he Products, as well as all 

information, know-how, techniques, processes contained in them, and all rights related to them 

(whether patented or not, and including all documentation and information).”  Id. at 6 (emphasis 

added). 

VI. SPECIFIC INSTANCES OF UNFAIR IMPORTATION AND SALE 

6.1. A sample of SecretRF will be submitted when COVID restrictions allow or when 

Complainants receive alternative instructions from the Commission. 

6.2. Proposed Respondents, or others on their behalf, manufacture the Accused Products 

overseas and then import them into the United States, sell them for importation into the United 

States, and/or sell them after importation into the United States.   

6.3. For example, Cutera admitted to the Commission that “it imports and sells Secret 

RF products in the U.S.” and that “it distributes Secret RF products in the U.S.”  See Exhibit 10, 

¶¶ 35, 68.  The Secret RF product was present at Cutera’s booth at the AAD Conference in San 

Diego, California, in February 2018.  See id., ¶ 68.  Cutera continues to distribute Secret RF in the 

United States, as demonstrated by its website.  See Exhibit 3. 

VII. UNFAIR ACTS OF PROPOSED RESPONDENTS 

A. Infringement of the Asserted Patents 

7.1. The Proposed Respondents have engaged in unfair trade practices, including the 

sale for importation, importation, and/or sale after importation into the United States of certain 
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skin rejuvenation resurfacing devices, components thereof, and products containing the same that 

infringe the asserted claims of the ’285 patent (“the Accused Products”). 

7.2. The Proposed Respondents directly infringe, contributorily infringe, and/or induce 

the infringement of at least the Asserted Claims identified in the table above.5 

7.3. By importing, selling, and/or offering for sale the Accused Products, the Proposed 

Respondents are and have been directly infringing the ’285 patent either literally or under the 

doctrine of equivalents. 

7.4. The Proposed Respondents directly infringe the ’285 patent at least through their 

sale for importation, importation, and sale after importation into the United States of the Accused 

Products. 

7.5. On information and belief, the Proposed Respondents manufacture, assemble, 

package and test, and/or purchase the Accused Products outside the United States, specifically, at 

least in South Korea.  The Proposed Respondents then sell for importation, import into the United 

States, and/or sell within the United States after importation, the Accused Products. 

B. Application of the Asserted Claims 

7.6. The Accused Products that are sold for importation, imported, and/or sold after 

importation into the United States by the Proposed Respondents infringe individually as an 

apparatus at least the Asserted Claims, either literally—directly or indirectly—or under the 

doctrine of equivalents.  Attached to this Complaint is a chart that applies to the Secret RF device 

and claim 1 of the ’285 patent.  See Exhibit 5. 

                                                 
5  Discovery may reveal that the Proposed Respondents infringe additional claims of the Asserted 

Patents.  Complainants reserve all rights to supplement their allegations with respect to any 
upcoming or newly discovered products. 
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VIII. CLASSIFICATION UNDER THE HARMONIZED TARIFF SCHEDULE 

8.1. The Accused Products are believed to fall within at least the following classification 

of the Harmonized Tariff Schedule of the United States: 9018.90.8000.  This classification is 

intended for illustration only and is not intended to be restrictive of the Accused Products. 

IX. DOMESTIC INDUSTRY 

9.1. As required by Section 337(a)(2) and defined by Section 337(a)(3), a domestic 

industry exists in the United States in connection with the articles protected by the ’285 patent due 

to investments made by Complainants in the United States. 

A. Technical Prong 

9.2. Complainants have at least one radiofrequency microneedling system that 

implements the patented technology (“the Domestic Industry Product”).  Complainants will be 

submitting four articles representative of the Domestic Industry Product once the Commission 

reopens. 

9.3. A claim chart demonstrating how the Domestic Industry Product practices at least 

one claim of the ’285 patent is attached as Exhibit 7.  A technical domestic industry exists. 

B. Economic Prong 

9.4. Complainants have made, and continue to make, substantial investments in the 

United States to create and support the Domestic Industry Product. 

9.5. A domestic industry, under subparts (A), (B), and/or (C) of Section 337(a)(3), exists 

by virtue of Complainants’ significant domestic investment in facilities and labor, and/or 

substantial investment in U.S. exploitation of the ’285, including through research and 

development directed to the  Domestic Industry Product. 

9.6. Complainants have made, and continue to make, a significant investment in their 

employees involved in the Domestic Industry Products in the United States.  Complainants’ 
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employees are involved in research and development, quality control, product support and 

technical services, marketing, sales, customer support, and after-sales services for, among other 

things, the Domestic Industry Products in its U.S. facilities.  The declaration of Yair Malca 

[Exhibit 8] further describes these labor activities and the expenditures associated therewith. 

9.7. Complainants have made, and continue to make, a significant investment in 

Invasix’s Lake Forest, California, facilities with respect to the Domestic Industry Products.  Those 

facilities house research and development, quality control, product support and technical services, 

marketing, sales, customer support, and after-sales services related to the Domestic Industry 

Product.  Mr. Malca’s declaration further describes these facilities and the expenditures associated 

therewith. 

9.8. Finally, Complainants have made substantial investments in research and 

development underlying the creation and improvement of the Domestic Industry Products, 

including activities related to obtaining regulatory approval for such products.  Mr. Malca’s 

declaration further describes these research and development activities, and the expenditures 

associated therewith. 

X. RELATED LITIGATION 

10.1. There are no litigations related to this Investigation. 

XI. REQUESTED EXCLUSION ORDERS 

A. Limited Exclusion Order 

11.1. Pursuant to Section 337(d), Complainants respectfully request that a limited 

exclusion order be entered against the infringing products of each named Proposed Respondent 

and its subsidiaries and affiliates in order to remedy the Proposed Respondents’ violation of 

Section 337 and to prevent such future violations by Proposed Respondents. 
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B. Cease and Desist Orders 

11.2. Cease and desist orders directing all named Proposed Respondents to cease and 

desist from the importation, marketing, advertising, distribution, and sale of the infringing certain 

skin rejuvenation resurfacing devices, components thereof, and products containing the same are 

appropriate under Section 337(f) to remedy, and prevent, the violation of Complainants’ patent 

rights. 

XII. REQUESTED RELIEF 

12.1. WHEREFORE, by reason of the foregoing, Complainants request that the United 

States International Trade Commission: 

a. Institute an immediate investigation, pursuant to Section 337 of the Tariff 

Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. § 1337(a)(l)(B)(i) and (b)(l), with 

respect to a violation of Section 337 by Proposed Respondents based upon 

their sale for importation, importation, and/or sale after importation into the 

United States of certain skin rejuvenation resurfacing devices, components 

thereof, and products containing the same that infringe one or more of the 

Asserted Claims of Complainants’ United States Patent No. 10,799,285; 

b. Schedule and conduct a hearing on the Proposed Respondents’ unlawful 

acts and, following the hearing, determine that the Proposed Respondents 

have violated Section 337; 

c. Issue a permanent limited exclusion order specifically directed to each 

named Proposed Respondent and each of their respective subsidiaries and 

affiliates, barring from entry into the United States certain skin rejuvenation 

resurfacing devices, components thereof, and products containing the same, 
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which infringe one or more of the Asserted Claims of Complainants’ United 

States Patent No. 10,799,285; 

d. Issue a permanent cease and desist order, pursuant to 19 U.S.C. § 1337(f), 

directing the Proposed Respondents to cease and desist from selling for 

importation into the United States, importing, selling after importation into 

the United States, offering for sale, marketing, advertising, demonstrating, 

sampling, warehousing inventory for distribution, selling, distributing, 

licensing, testing, providing technical support, use, or other related 

commercial activity involving certain skin rejuvenation resurfacing devices, 

components thereof, and products containing the same that infringe one or 

more of the Asserted Claims of Complainants’ United States Patent No. 

10,799,295; 

e. Impose a bond, pursuant to Section 337(j) of the Tariff Act of 1930, as 

amended, upon the Proposed Respondents during the Presidential review 

period; and 

f. Grant such other and further relief as the Commission deems just and proper 

based upon the facts determined by the investigation and the authority of 

the Commission. 

 

Date:  March 15, 2021                                         Respectfully submitted, 
 
 

/s/ Benjamin E. Weed 
Benjamin E. Weed 
George C. Summerfield 
Gina A. Johnson 
70 W. Madison St. 
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Suite 3300 
Chicago, IL 60602 
Tel: (312) 372.1121 
Fax: (312) 827.8000 
 
Jacob C. Vannette 
1600 K St. N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20006 
Tel: (202) 628-1700 
 
Counsel for Complainants InMode Ltd. and 
Invasix Inc. 
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PRODUCTS CONTAINING THE SAME 
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VERIFICATION TO COMPLAINT 

 
I, Yair Malca, declare in accordance with 19 C.F.R. §§ 210.4 and 210.12(a) as follows: 

1. I am the Chief Financial Officer of Complainant InMode Ltd. and the Treasurer of 

Complainant Invasix Inc. d/b/a InMode, and I am duly authorized to sign this Complaint; 

2. I have read the Complaint, and I am aware of its contents; 

3. The Complaint is not being presented for any improper purpose, such as to harass 

or to cause unnecessary delay or needless increase in the cost of litigation; 

4. To the best of my knowledge, information, and belief founded upon reasonable 

inquiry, the claims and legal contentions of the Complaint are warranted by existing law or a non-

frivolous argument for the extension, modification, or reversal of existing law or the establishment 

of new law; and 

5. The allegations and other factual contentions made in the Complaint have 

evidentiary support or are likely to have evidentiary support after a reasonable opportunity for 

further investigation or discovery. 
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I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States of America that the 

foregoing is true and correct. 

 

Executed on March 15, 2021, in Irvine, California. 

 

       /s/ Yair Malca 
       Yair Malca 


